
1 
 

 
Argyll Community Housing Association  

 

Board of Management Meeting  
 

Thursday 11th December 2025, at 10.00am in the Fairmile Building, Sandbank 
 

Minute 
 

                Present: 
Cathy Grant (Chair) 

Jim Milne (Secretary) 
Ian McIntyre (Chair of Audit Committee) 

Mike Brown 
Brian Gannon 
Dan Hughes 
Pat McVey 

Cllr William Sinclair 
 

Not in attendance 

In Attendance: 

Michelle Mundie, Chief Executive 
Allan MacDonald, Director of Group Services 

Sandra McLeod, Director of Customer Experience 
William Mulheron, Director of Assets & Sustainability  
Careen Hendry, Governance & Compliance Manager 

Stephen Lalley, Regulation Manager, Scottish Housing Regulator 
Ross McAneny, Regulation Analyst, Scottish Housing Regulator 

Joe Quinn, Regulation Manager (Finance), Scottish Housing Regulator 
Lesley Lindsay, PA to Board of Management (minute) 

 

 The Chair welcomed Stephen Lalley, Ross McAneny and Joe Quinn to the meeting and 
thanked them for attending. 
 

  To be actioned 
by 05/02/2026 

1. Apologies 
Steven Duffy, Mark Irvine, Esther Hughes, Cllr Jan Brown 
 

 

2. Minutes of Previous Meetings 
16th October 2025 
The Board of Management APPROVED the minute as a true and 
accurate record of the meeting. 
 
Proposed by:  Pat McVey 
Seconded by: Dan Hughes 
 
23rd October 2025 
The Board of Management APPROVED the minute as a true and 
accurate record of the meeting. 

 



2 
 

 
Proposed by:  Jim Milne 
Seconded by: Cllr William Sinclair 
 

3. Matters Arising 
16th October 2025 
Page 2 – Item 3 – the Chief Executive advised there had been no 
response regarding the Association’s bid for the Eggshed.  She further 
advised ACHA had given a deadline of the end of December.  If no 
response received by then, the bid would be withdrawn. 
 
Page 2 – Item 3 – the Chief Executive advised there had been no further 
update received from the organisers of the World Clipper Race. 
 
Page 4 – Item 4 – the Director of Group Services to check the position in 
relation to issuing sub-committee and AHFA minutes with the 
Governance Manager. 
Action complete.  The Board of Management NOTED the reviewed 
process. 
 
Page 4 – Item 8 – the Director of Group Services to share the link to the 
YouTube video from the SFHA’s 50th anniversary celebrations. 
Action completed.  Issued 16th October 2025. 
 
Page 6 – Item 9 – the Director of Group Services to provide feedback on 
whether the year could run September to end August. 
Action complete.  Pat McVey confirmed he was happy with the response. 
 
Page 8 – Item 11 – the Director of Group Services to pass on the Board 
of Management’s thanks for the work done on the Annual Assurance 
Statement. 
Action complete. 
 
Page 8 – Item 11 – the Director of Group Services to advise the 
Governance Manager of the Chair’s request to submit the Annual 
Assurance Statement in advance of the deadline of 31st October 2025. 
Action complete. 
 
Page 8 – Item 11 – the Director of Group Services to highlight to the 
Governance Manager of the potential requirement to insert compliance 
levels for all safety issues. 
Action complete. 
 
Page 8 – Item 11 – the Director of Group Services to advise the Board on 
how often Whistleblowing training is undertaken. 
 
Page 10 – Item 15 – the Director of Assets to open communications with 
Cardross Community Council and Argyll and Bute Council on a potential 
asset transfer of Cardross Playpark. 
The Board of Management NOTED a ROSPA report had been 
commissioned and was awaited. 
 
Page 10 – Item 15 – the Director of Assets to commission a ROSPA 
survey and report. 

 



3 
 

Action complete. 
 
Page 10 – Item 15 – the Director of Assets to provide a report to the 
December Board meeting on the development of a capital proposal for 
2026/27 to address safety matting and ground stability works. 
Action complete. 
 
Page 13 – Item 23 – the Director of Group Services to look into the 
possibility of Mike Brown attending Strategic Planning virtually 
(Refinancing item only). 
Action complete. 
 
23rd October 
Page 4 – Item 2 – DTP to check within the loan agreement, the window 
in which a first and second year extension could be requested. 
The Director of Group Services advised an update would be provided to 
the Board of Management’s February meeting. 
 

4. Approved Minute – Staffing & Remuneration Committee (22nd 
October 2025) 
The Chair of the Staffing & Remuneration Committee took the meeting 
through the salient points from the meeting. 
 
The Director of Group Services advised a liaison meeting with the Trade 
Unions had been held on 10th December where the CPI level had been 
discussed.  He further advised a report would be considered by the 
Staffing & Remuneration Committee at their meeting on 17th December 
2025. 
 
The Board of Management unanimously RATIFIED the minute of the 
meeting. 
 

 

5. Approved Minute of the Policy, Performance & Operations 
Committee (10th November 2025) 
In the Chair of the Policy, Performance & Operations Committee, the 
Director of Customer Experience took the meeting through the salient 
points from the meeting. 
 
There were no questions and the Board of Management unanimously 
RATIFIED the minute of the meeting. 
 

 

6. Minute of the Risk, Finance & Audit Committee (20th November 
2025) 
The Chair of the Risk, Finance & Audit Committee took the meeting 
through the main points from the meeting. 
 
There were no questions and the Board of Management unanimously 
RATIFIED the minute of the meeting. 
 

 

7. Minute of the AHFA Board Meeting (6th October 2025) 
The Chair took the meeting through the approved minute. 
 
There were no questions and the Board of Management NOTED the 
minute. 

 



4 
 

8. Correspondence 
None. 
 

 

9. Declarations of Interest 
Mike Brown advised he would take no part in discussions relating to the 
Community Action Fund application received from Cardross Scout 
Group. 
 

 

10. Chief Executive Presentation 
The Board of Management NOTED the content of the presentation 
delivered by the Chief Executive covering: 
 

 Elf News 

 Home Argyll Policy 

 EVH Membership Renewal 

 Data Breach 

 Dunallan House 

 Acquisitions 2025/26 

 Christmas 

 Community Champion 
 
The Chief Executive took the meeting through the minor amendments 
requested by the Home Argyll Steering Group and asked whether the 
Board wished a full report to be presented.  The Board AGREED there 
was no requirement for a report and unanimously APPROVED the 
amendments to the Home Argyll policy.  The Chief Executive advised 
she would advise the Home Argyll Steering Group of the Board’s 
decision. 
 
The Board of Management unanimously APPROVED Affiliate 
Membership Renewal of EVH for 2026/27. 
 
The Board discussed the Data Breach.  The SHR’s Regulation Manager 
requested the Association update the Regulator on the outcome of the 
Data Breach once the ICO had responded.  The Regulation Manager 
stated the Association should have provided information to the SHR of 
the incident. 
 
The Chief Executive advised the acquisition programme had been 
beneficial to assisting Argyll and Bute Council quickly in relation to the 
housing emergency.  She stated the £500k for 2025/26 had not been 
fully spent and confirmed there would be budget provision for 
acquisitions in the 2026/27 financial year. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Michelle 
Mundie 
 
 
 
 
 
Careen 
Hendry 

11. Community Action Fund Applications 
The Board of Management unanimously APPROVED four Community 
Action Fund applications: 

 Cardross Scouts Group                £500.00 

 The Highlands and Islands Music and Dance Festival £500.00 

 Lorn Toy Library                 £500.00 

 Route 81 Youth Project                £500.00 
 

 



5 
 

It was NOTED £16,541.84 remained in the 2025/26 budget.  The Board 
were advised articles had been placed on Facebook and the internal 
intranet, Staff Circle, encouraging local charitable organisations to apply. 
 
The Board were reminded to communicate the scheme to local 
organisations with charity status. 
 

12. Confidential 
Leave of Absence Request 
The Board of Management unanimously APPROVED the leave of 
absence request from the Vice Chair for a period of up to 3-months. 
 

 

13. Confidential 
Governing Body Appraisals 2025/26 
The Director of Group Services advised it had been previously agreed 
the Governing Body Member appraisals would be conducted by an 
external party every third year.  He advised four invitations had been 
issued, as outlined in paragraph 1 of the report with two responses being 
received. 
 
The Secretary stated EVH had completed the appraisals very 
successfully in 2023 and he fully supported the recommendation to 
appoint EVH. 
 
The Board of Management NOTED as affiliate members of EVH, there 
was a reduced cost to undertake the appraisal exercise. 
 
The Board of Management unanimously AGREED to appoint EVH to 
carry out the 2025/26 Governing Body Appraisals. 
 

 

14. Confidential 
Johnston Court, Helensburgh 
The Director of Assets provided the meeting with the background to the 
defective cavity wall insulation and deteriorating roughcast, which was 
contributing to dampness, condensation and heat loss. 
 
He advised there were 16 properties within both blocks.  Three of which 
are privately owned and the remaining 13 properties, ACHA owned.  One 
of the blocks is factored by ACHA and the other is not. 
 
The Director of Assets advised there were currently two voids within the 
block, one of which became void in October 2025 and the other since 
January 2021.  He stated the properties could not be let until remedial 
work is undertaken.  He advised the current rent loss for the properties 
was in the region of £30k. 
 
The Board noted, since April 2024, there had been three reports of 
damp, mould or condensation in the blocks which directly related to the 
condition of the exterior roughcast and insulation.  The Director of Assets 
advised one tenant was in the process of being decanted due to water 
ingress, damp and mould. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

The Director of Assets advised an options appraisal had been carried 
out, as highlighted in section 2 of his report and took the meeting through 
each of the options (2.1 – 2.4). 
 
The Director of Assets took the meeting through the financial impact for 
option 4; new cavity wall insulation and render.  He stated the overall 
cost totalled £205k, with ACHA’s share being just over £167k.  He further 
advised private owners would receive grant funding of £9k, bringing their 
share to £3,800.  The Board of Management noted a full consultation had 
not yet taken place but early discussions with owners had been positive. 
 
The Board noted grant funding could only be provided to owners if the 
project was delivered through the Energy Efficiency Projects (Scotland) 
Grant Funding, meaning Argyll and Bute Council would lead on the 
project and would procure and appoint a contractor. 
 
The Board noted the Association had a duty to tenants and legal advice 
would be sought if owners refused to participate.  Cllr Sinclair stated the 
project would increase the value of the owner’s properties and improve 
energy efficiency.  It was AGREED good communication with owners 
was imperative. 
 
Brian Gannon asked whether it would be Argyll and Bute Council’s legal 
services that could impose a burden if required.  The Director of Assets 
advised it would likely be ACHA that would require to take legal action. 
 
The Chair of the Risk, Finance & Audit Committee stated he had 
concerns over the length of time it had taken to develop an action plan 
and requested the Board of Management received a report on why it had 
taken from January 2021 to December 2025. 
 
The Board discussed whether the standards provided by Argyll and Bute 
Council would match the Association’s standards.  After discussion, the 
Board of Management agreed the Council’s standard was of an adequate 
level. 
 
The Board of Management AGREED they wished a benchmarking report 
against peers, outlining how much grant funding had been brought in to 
be presented to a future Board meeting. 
 
The Director of Customer Experience advised she would include 
additional information on long term voids for the Policy, Performance & 
Operations Committee. 
 
The Board of Management NOTED the content of the report and 
unanimously APPROVED commissioning of the fabric renewal work to 
both blocks. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
William 
Mulheron 
 
 
 
 
 
 
William 
Mulheron 
 
 
Sandra 
McLeod 

15. Damp and Mould Annual Report 
The Chief Executive advised that as part of the Association’s action plan 
on damp, mould and condensation a commitment had been given to 
provide the Board of Management with an annual status report.  The 
Board noted the report had been extended to include a 20 month period 
between April 2024 and November 2025. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



7 
 

 
The Chief Executive took the meeting through the report, contained in 
appendix 1, highlighting: 

 The number of cases by area and type 

 Performance against Key Performance Indicators 

 Annual Return on the Charter reporting data 

 Trends and analysis 

 Geographic breakdown 

 Priority categories 

 Tenant complaints 

 Actions taken 

 Staff training 

 Communication campaigns encouraging tenants to report issues 
 
The Director of Assets advised he would use the information to produce 
a heat map, which may help in identifying further information on damp 
and mould issues. 
 
The Board noted the spike in numbers was as a result of the rent 
consultation and communication campaigns to encourage tenants to 
report issues. 
 
The Secretary asked if ACHA had made contact with other RSLs on how 
they managed damp and mould.  The Director of Assets advised ACHA 
were doing exactly the same as other Housing Association and had a 
zero tolerance towards damp, mould and condensation.  He advised 
training had been provided to all staff, with specialised training provided 
to the teams dealing directly with damp, mould and condensation issues. 
 
The Director of Customer Experience stated benchmarking information 
could be obtained from the Annual Return on the Charter next year.  
Brian Gannon requested that future report show stock affected as a 
percentage of stock as well as actual numbers. 
 
Pat McVey suggested the reason tenants were not reporting damp and 
mould issues could relate to historic advice given; not enough ventilation, 
put heating on and open windows.  He stated if tenants had previously 
been given that advice it may prevent them from reporting.  The Director 
of Assets advised ACHA had been running campaigns asking tenants to 
report any damp and mould concerns and would continue to do so.  He 
further advised that part of the process meant repeated follow up visits 
until the issue had been resolved.  He advised the Association took the 
matter very seriously and would continue to convey the message to 
tenants. 
 
The Chair of the Risk, Finance & Audit Committee stated paragraph 3.1 
of the report provided him with assurance that tenants were beginning to 
report issues.  He stated the heat map would be very beneficial and 
informative. 
 
The Director of Customer Experience advised the new Operating Model 
meant Housing Officers would have smaller patches which would allow 
any issues to be highlighted more quickly. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
William 
Mulheron 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Michelle 
Mundie 



8 
 

 
The Board of Management NOTED the content of the report. 
 

16. Damp and Mould Quarterly Report – Quarter 2 
The Chief Executive stated the Quarter 2 update had fallen into the 
reporting calendar at the same time as the annual report. 
 
She advised her report covered the period 1st July 2025 to 30th 
September 2025 and took the meeting through the report. 
 
The Board noted three of the 20 reported cases were still in the process 
of being resolved. 
 
The Board of Management NOTED the content of the report. 
 

 

17. Confidential 
Ferfadd Court Health & Safety Compliance 
The Director of Assets advised his report provided an update on the 
independent SBAR (Situation, Background, Assessment and 
Recommendation) audit, undertaken by Hydrop ECS.  He further advised 
the improvement plan was currently being implemented. 
 
The Director of Assets took the meeting through the background to his 
report which related to the presence of bacteria in the water system in 
the sheltered housing complex at Ferfadd Court, Rothesay.  He reminded 
the meeting of the extensive works that had been carried out, which had 
significantly reduced bacteria levels.  He stated the ongoing monitoring 
regime indicated bacteria levels were increasing and as a result an 
independent audit had been commissioned. 
 
The Director of Assets took the meeting through the summary of the 
findings from the audit carried out by Hydrop. 
 
The Chair stated the report did not make good reading and stated the 
Board of Management were seeking reassurance regarding compliance 
and record keeping.  The Director of Assets assured the Board of 
Management the matter was being taken very seriously and confirmed at 
no point were tenants at risk.  He advised the tests and logs were being 
carried out and updated electronically but an administrative error meant 
the paperwork was not being printed and filed in the folder.  He confirmed 
all staff were now aware of their responsibilities. 
 
The Board noted the cost of £120k per year to undertake flushing daily 
and testing at Ferfadd Court.  The Director of Assets advised all other 
sheltered housing complexes did not incur that cost. 
 
The Board of Management NOTED the findings of the Hydrop SBAR 
report and the associated issues requiring improvement. 
The Board of Management NOTED the content of the improvement plan. 
The Board of Management NOTED a copy of the SBAR report and 
improvement plan had been provided to the Scottish Housing Regulator. 
 

 

18. Confidential 
Sole Negotiating for Joint Trade Unions on Pay 

 
 



9 
 

The Director of Group Services advised during the August 2025 Staffing 
& Remuneration Committee meeting, the Trade Unions had requested 
the inclusion of sole negotiating rights on pay.  The Chair of the Staffing 
& Remuneration Committee advised agreement to include sole 
negotiating rights would require full Board of Management approval. 
 
The Director of Group Services took the meeting through the detail as 
outlined in paragraphs 1.2 – 1.6 of his report. 
 
The Board requested the message be clearly conveyed to staff to avoid 
confusion. 
 
The Board noted the Joint Trade Union Recognition Agreement had not 
yet been signed by all three Trade Unions.  The Director of Group 
Services advised the Association’s OD & HR Manager was working on 
engaging with the GMB union. 
 
The Board of Management unanimously APPROVED the inclusion of 
sole negotiating rights for Joint Trade Unions in relation to pay for all 
Group staff. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Allan 
MacDonald 

19. Gypsy Traveller Strategy 2025 – 2030 
The Director of Customer Experience advised the Strategy had been 
approved by the Policy, Performance & Operations Committee at their 
meeting on 10th November 2025 and stated her report was seeking 
ratification of the Strategy from the Board of Management. 
 
The Board noted the level of work that had been carried out to develop 
the strategy and asked for their thanks to be passed to Sarah Campbell.   
 
The Board AGREED the Strategy was an excellent document. 
 
The Board of Management unanimously RATIFIED the Gypsy Traveller 
Strategy 2025 – 2030. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Sandra 
McLeod 

20. Confidential 
ACHA Draft Budget 2026/27 
The Director of Group Services advised his report provided information 
on the financial analysis of the draft budget for 2026/27 and took the 
meeting through his report highlighting the main budget headings: 
 

 Gross rental income less bad debts 

 Acquisitions and disposals 

 Service charge income 

 Revenue grant income 

 Void rent loss 

 Voids (Dalintober still assumed) 

 Rental bad debt 

 Management costs 

 Pay uplift 

 Property costs (detailed in section 6) 

 Other income and expenditure 

 Office and IT capital budgets 

 



10 
 

 New builds 
 
The Director of Group Services requested the Board of Management 
consider and agree any areas where officers should undertake further 
work/review prior to agreeing the final budget for approval in February 
2026. 
 
The Director of Group Services advised the draft budget was fully 
covenant compliant and there were no issues around cashflow or 
liquidity. 
 
The Board of Management noted paragraph 1.6 of the report: 
In simple terms, the current draft budget is £0.322m favourable to the 
approved business plan. This favourable variance includes: 
• £0.212m of non-recurring favourable variance relating to interest 
payable (explained in Appendix 1, Section 8) 
• Turnover (mainly rental income) is £0.079m favourable based on the 
4.5% rent increase assumption. 
 
The Director of Group Services drew the Board’s attention to paragraph 
11.6 of his report and took the meeting through each of the bullet points. 
 
The Director of Group Services advised there had no unexpected issues 
from the Autumn budget.  Pat McVey stated when the rent increase had 
been discussed in October, the Board of Management had agreed if 
there was no negative impact from the Autumn budget a rent increase of 
4% would be considered.  The Director of Group Services advised the 
Board of Management had agreed to consult on a 4.5% increase.  He 
further advised the budget was underpinned by a 4.5% rent increase but 
it would be a decision for the Board of Management to take at their 
February meeting.  He stated a 4% rent increase would create a budget 
gap of around £70k.  The Director of Group Services stated his report to 
the Board in February would include information on a range of rent 
increase options between 4% - 4.5% for the Board to take a decision on. 
 
The Chair asked if there were any areas the Board wished the Senior 
Management Team to undertake further work or review.  It was 
confirmed there were no areas requiring further work. 
 
The Board of Management NOTED the financial analysis of the draft 
budget for 2026/27. 
 

21. Confidential 
Bowmore Phase 4 Pre Acquisition and Tender Publication 
The Chief Executive advised the Association were now in a position to 
progress.  The Chair of the Risk, Finance & Audit Committee stated he 
was disappointed the process had taken so long as detailed planning 
permission was submitted in October 2022 with consents being awarded 
in 2024.  The Chief Executive advised the Scottish Government had also 
raised concerns and would be meeting with Argyll and Bute Council 
officials in January 2026 to discuss.  She further advised planning 
permission was an issue for many Housing Associations and the Scottish 
Government would be attempting to resolve the delays.  The Chief 
Executive commented delays had also been caused by Islay Estates. 

 



11 
 

 
The Chief Executive advised a funding application had been submitted to 
the Scottish Government. 
 
The Board of Management NOTED the content of the report and 
unanimously APPROVED the procurement of a design and build 
contractor to progress the project to tender approval stage.  The Board of 
Management also unanimously APPROVED acquisition of the site 
subject to the receipt of satisfactory funding approval. 
 

22. Confidential 
AHFA Management Accounts;   October 2025 
The Director of Group Services advised page 2 of the report sets out the 
main information.  He advised there were a number of adjustments which 
required to be put through for October.  The Board of Management noted 
a significant piece of work had been carried out in relation to income 
certificates from previous periods and the sub contracted work invoiced. 
 
The Director of Group Services advised Steven Duffy had raised a 
couple of questions which would be responded to and copied to the 
Board of Management. 
 
The Director of Group Services stated once the adjustments had been 
made, AHFA’s Management Accounts would be in line with the budget. 
 
Mike Brown stated AHFA had been in existence for 12 years and were 
still experiencing issues with invoicing.  He asked at what point alarm 
bells would ring.  The Director of Group Services advised alarm bells 
would ring if there was an actual loss. He further advised the new 
Managing Director was implementing processes to ensure invoicing was 
carried out regularly instead of out of contract work being claimed 
annually.  The Board of Management noted that would significantly 
improve reporting information. 
 
There were no further questions and the Board of Management NOTED 
the content of the AHFA Management Accounts to 31st October 2025. 
 

 

23. ACHA Management Accounts; October 2025 
The Director of Group Services took the meeting through his report and 
advised the forecast outturn was a favourable £340k, with the majority 
coming from interest payable.  He stated the overall forecast outturn 
would continue to be reviewed and incorporated into the cash covenant 
monitoring work being undertaken in quarter 4. 
 
The Director of Group Services advised the Treasury Management Policy 
would reset following refinancing. 
 
The Board of Management NOTED the content of the ACHA 
Management Accounts to 31st October 2025. 
 

 

24. Confidential 
Rent Uplift – Benchmarking Update 
The Director of Group Services advised his report included a comparison 
of submissions to the Scottish Federations of Housing Associations 

 
 
 
 
 



12 
 

(SFHA) rent setting survey 2026/27 and also information sent out to 
member organisations by Scotland’s Housing Network (SHN) from their 
rent consultation survey and took the meeting through his report. 
 
The Board of Management NOTED the supplementary benchmarking 
information on proposed rent increases prior to taking a decision on rent 
levels at the February 2026 meeting. 
 
The Director of Group Services advised there had been 368 responses to 
date from the rent consultation, which was double the usual response 
rate.  He advised a detailed report would be provided to the Board of 
Management in February, which would include all comments received 
from tenants. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Allan 
MacDonald 

25. Confidential 
Refinancing Progress Update 
The Board of Management NOTED progress on refinancing work during 
late October and November 2025 and further NOTED work being 
progressed during December 2025 and early 2026. 
 

 

26. Confidential 
Notifiable Events 
The Board of Management NOTED the submitted Notifiable Events to 
the Scottish Housing Regulator and the Care Inspectorate. 
 

 

27. A.O.C.B. 
The Board of Management AGREED the February Board meeting would 
be held in person in Fairmile, Sandbank. 
Mike Brown asked if arrangements could be made to allow him to join 
virtually. 
 
The annual membership prize draw took place with the winner being 
announced as Mary McGregor, 2 Burnside, Bruichladdich, Isle of Islay.  
 
The Director of Customer Experience advised several members of the 
Your Voice Group had withdrawn due to personal issues.  She advised 
the Senior Management Team would be discussing at their next meeting. 
 

 

28. Date & Time of Next Meeting 
Thursday 5th February 2026 at 10.00am in Fairmile, Sandbank 
 

 

 
 
Signed by Chair:     Cathy Grant 
 
Date:     5th February 2026 
 
 
 


